
Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Regular Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER - Pledge of Allegiance 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters 
within its jurisdiction.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete a speaker’s request 
form and provide the completed form to the Board Secretary prior to the board meeting. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.  
There will be no discussion of these items unless board members, administrative staff, or members of the 
public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed prior to the vote for approval.   

A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting - December 17, 2019 

2. Board Workshop - January 14, 2020 

B. Payment of Bills 

1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded Contracts 

2. Ratify General Expenses for December 2019 

V. STAFF REPORT 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING - Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-01 Setting Rates, Fees, and Charges 
for Drinking Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Service [Director Memorandum No. 20-001 
- Page 26 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board conduct a public hearing to receive 
comments and consider the adoption of Resolution No. 2020-01 Setting Rates, 
Fees, and Charges for Drinking Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Service. 

B. Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2020-01 to Provide Drinking Water and 
Sewer Service to 13009 4th Street (APN 0319-161-24) a 16 Unit Private Single Lot 
Subdivision - Yucaipa [Director Memorandum No. 20-002 - Page 58 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the Board President to 
execute Development Agreement No 2020-01. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 1 of 147

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


 
Page 2 

C. Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on December 31, 
2019 [Director Memorandum No. 20-003 - Page 74 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial 
report. 

D. Consideration to Modify the Microfiltration Drain Piping at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility [Director Memorandum No. 20-004 - Page 99 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute a contract for the drain modification with Pascal & Ludwig for a sum not to 
exceed $9,968. 

E. Ratification of Authorization to Inspect the Influent Pipe at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility [Director Memorandum No. 20-005 - Page 104 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board ratify the influent pipe inspection by 
Harper & Associates Engineering Inc. for a sum not to exceed $3,200. 

F. Ratification to Replace the Dissolved Air Floatation (DAF) Recirculation Pumps and Motors 
at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility [Director Memorandum No. 20-006 
- Page 108 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board ratify the replacement of the DAF 
motors and pumps with R.F. MacDonald Co. for a sum not to exceed $13,775. 

G. Review of Proposed Meter Installation Costs for 2020 [Director Memorandum No. 20-007 - 
Page 111 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-02. 

H. Preparation of the Wilson Creek Basin Tracer Study Workplan [Director Memorandum No. 
20-008 - Page 114 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute the Geoscience Budget Amendment for the Wilson Creek Basins Tracer 
Study Workplan for a sum not to exceed $7,930. 

I. Presentation of the Continuing Disclosure Annual Report (CDAR) [Director Memorandum 
No. 20-009 - Page 117 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board receive and file the Continuing 
Disclosure Annual Report (CDAR). 

J. Discussion Regarding the Assignment of Individuals to Represent the District in Small 
Claims Court [Director Memorandum No. 20-010 - Page 124 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-03. 

K. Discussion Regarding the Review of Statement of Facts Required by Government Code 
Section 53051 [Director Memorandum No. 20-011 - Page 126 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the General Manager to file 
the Statement of Facts. 

L. Discussion Regarding the Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-04 Approving an Investment 
Policy and Appointment of the General Manager as the District Investment Officer [Director 
Memorandum No. 20-012 - Page 129 of 147] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopts Resolution No. 2020-04. 

VII. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. January 28, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

B. February 4, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

C. February 11, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

D. February 18, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 2 of 147



 
Page 3 

E. February 25, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

F. March 3, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

G. March 10, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

H. March 17, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

I. March 31, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

J. April 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

K. April 14, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

L. April 21, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

M. April 28, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

N. May 5, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

O. May 12, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

P. May 19, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

Q. May 26, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

R. June 2, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

S. June 9, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

T. June 16, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

U. June 30, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

IX. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) - Government Code 54956.8 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number: 0319-121-38 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Harry Holdorff 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) - Government Code 54956.8 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number: 0319-121-63 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Emmet Conlon 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

C. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (Government Code 54956.9) - Two 
Cases 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 3 of 147



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 4 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

December 17, 2019 at 6:00 P.M. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District was called to order by Chris Mann at 6:00 
p.m. at the Administrative Office Building, 12770 Second Street, 
Yucaipa, California. 
 

FLAG SALUTE Director Chris Mann led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL The roll was called with Director Jay Bogh, Director Bruce 
Granlund, Director Lonni Granlund, Director Chris Mann, and 
Director Joyce McIntire present.   
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS None.   
 

CONSENT CALENDAR Director Lonni Granlund moved to approve the consent calendar 
and Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting - December 3, 2019 
2. Board Workshop - December 10, 2019 

B. Payment of Bills 
1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded 

Contracts 
2. Ratify General Expenses for November 2019 

 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 

Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Chris Mann, President  

Bruce Granlund, Vice President  
Jay Bogh, Director 
Lonni Granlund, Director  
Joyce McIntire, Director 

Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

 
Directors Absent:  Consulting Staff Present: 
 None David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Linda Shelton 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 5 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 4 

Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the following items: 

• The next workshop meeting of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District will be held on January 14, 2020. 

• The District staff will be scheduling a community meeting 
during the week of January 13, 2020. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 

 

DM 19-136 
 
PRESENTATION OF THE 
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL 
REPORT FOR THE 
PERIOD ENDING ON 
NOVEMBER 30, 2019 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented the Unaudited 
Financial Report for the period ending on November 30, 2019.   
 
Director Lonni Granlund moved that the Board receive and file 
the unaudited financial report.  
 
Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-137 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
REPLACING THE 
ISOLATION VALVES 
FOR THE NEW 
INFLUENT BASKET 
STRAINERS TO BE 
INSTALLED AT THE 
YUCAIPA VALLEY 
REGIONAL WATER 
FILTRATION FACILITY 

Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky provided a detailed 
overview of the need to replace the valves that are located 
adjacent to the new strainers at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility.  
 
Director Lonni Granlund moved that the Board by minute order, 
the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Change 
Order No. 1 with Pascal & Ludwig for a sum not to exceed 
$17,069. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 6 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 4 

DM 19-138 
 
AWARD OF A 
CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH 
SUPERIOR TANK 
COMPANY FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT OF 
DRINKING WATER 
RESERVOIR R-16.6 - 
CALIMESA 

Implementation Manager Matthew Porras presented the 
construction bids for the replacement of drinking water 
Reservoir R-16.6 in Oak Hills.  
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board award a 
construction contract to Superior Tank Company for a sum not 
to exceed $565,668. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-139 
 
CONSIDERATION TO 
PURCHASE THREE (3) 
F-150 FORD TRUCKS 

Implementation Manager Matthew Porras presented information 
about the purchase of three F-150 Ford trucks for the District 
operation and public works staff.  
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board authorize the General 
Manager to purchase three F-150 Ford trucks for a sum not to 
exceed $79,911. 
 
Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes  
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

Director Bruce Granlund, Director Lonni Granlund, and Director 
Joyce McIntire reported on the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
meeting held on December 4, 2019. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund and Director Joyce McIntire reported on 
the Engineering Workshop meeting of the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency held on December 9, 2019. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund and Director Chris Mann reported on 
the ad hoc committee meeting with Tim Moore of Risk Sciences 
held on December 11, 2019. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 7 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 4 

Director Joyce McIntire reported on the Finance and Budget 
Workshop of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency held on 
December 16, 2019. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Director Chris Mann called attention to the announcements 
listed on the agenda.   
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

A closed session was not conducted at this meeting. 
 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m.   
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 8 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES OF A BOARD WORKSHOP 
 

January 14, 2020 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Chris Mann, President  

Bruce Granlund, Vice President 
Lonni Granlund, Director  
Joyce McIntire, Director  
 

Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Chelsie Fogus, Engineering Technician I 
Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Tim Mackamul, Operations Manager 
Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Supervisor 
Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 
John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

 
Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, Director  David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Guests and Others Present: 
 Bobby Duncan 

Craig Heaps 
Dennis Miller 
Linda Shelton 
Leonard Stephenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
I. Call to Order - 4:00 p.m. - The workshop of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley 

Water District was called to order by Chris Mann at 4:00 p.m. at the Administrative Office 
Building, 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California. 

II. Public Comments 

None 

III. Staff Report - General Manager Joseph Zoba presented information on the following 
topics: 

• The Yucaipa Valley Water District hosted a community meeting on Monday, 
January 13, 2020 to discuss the proposed drinking water, sewer, and recycled 
water rate changes.  A second community meeting is scheduled for January 15, 
2020. 

• The next meeting of the Yucaipa Valley Water District Financing Corporation will 
be held on Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 5:00 pm. 

• Information was provided about the installation of the dodecahedrons added to the 
Citrus Reservoir to reduce the number of birds using the water body.  A sample 
dodecahedron was shared with the board members and public. 

IV. Presentation 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 9 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 2 of 4 

A. Overview of the Draft California Water Resilience Portfolio [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 20-001] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview 
of the draft Water Resilience Portfolio and illustrated the similarities between the 
State’s plan and the District’s programs/initiatives. 

V. Strategic Planning 

A. Overview of the Strategic Planning Goals for 2019 and the Discussion of Future 
Strategic Goals for 2020 [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-002] - General Manager 
Joseph Zoba discussed the preparation of the 2020 Strategic Plan that will be 
reviewed and discussed at the next board workshop. 

B. Overview of the Feasibility of Proposed Solar Energy Projects and Power Storage 
Concepts [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-003] - Implementation Manager 
Kathryn Hallberg provided an overview of the solar power project to be located at 
the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility. 

VI. Operational Updates 

A. Status Report on the Annual Repairs and Rehabilitation of the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-004] - 
Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky provided an overview of the annual 
maintenance activities at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility. 

B. Status Report on the BioWin Model and Media Removal at Wochholz Regional 
Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-005] - Operations 
Manager Charles Thomas provided information about the treatment model that 
was prepared for the aeration basins at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling 
Facility. 

C. Overview of Installing Fine Bubble Diffusers for the Secondary Treatment Process 
at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 
20-006] - Operations Manager Charles Thomas provided an overview of the use 
of fine bubble diffusers to improve the secondary treatment aeration process and 
to reduce power costs at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility. 

VII. Capital Improvement Projects 

A. Status Report of the Replacement of the Drinking Water Reservoir R-16.6 - 
Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-007] - Implementation Manager 
Matthew Porras provided an update on the replacement of Drinking Water 
Reservoir R-16.6. 

B. Status Report on the Rehabilitation of Drinking Water Production Well No. 12 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 20-008] - Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky 
provided an update on the completion of the rehabilitation of Well No. 12. 

C. Status Report on the Rehabilitation of the Primary Clarifiers at  Wochholz Regional 
Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-009] - Operations 
Manager Charles Thomas provided an update on the completion of the 
rehabilitation of the primary clarifiers at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling 
Facility. 

D. Status Report on the Geotechnical Investigation Associated with the Calimesa 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-010] - 
General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an update on the status of the Aquifer 
Storage and Recovery Project in Calimesa. 

E. Overview of Electrical Service and Roadway Improvements at Drinking Water 
Reservoir R-18.4 [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-011] - Implementation Manager 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 10 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 3 of 4 

Matthew Porras provided an update on the status of the electrical power upgrade 
at Reservoir R-18.4. 

F. Status Report on the Avenue A - Avenue B Alley Mainline Break [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 20-012] - Public Works Manager John Wrobel provided an 
overview of the water mainline break on December 25, 2019 in uptown Yucaipa. 

VIII. Development Projects 

A. Consideration of Using the Statewide Community Infrastructure Program for the 
Payment of Drinking Water, Recycled Water and Sewer Facility Capacity Charges 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 20-013] - Bobby Duncan and Craig Heaps provided 
an overview of the use of the Statewide Community Infrastructure Program for 
development related fees and requested future consideration by the Board of 
Directors. 

B. Overview of a Draft Development Agreement for 13009 4th Street, a 16 unit private 
single lot subdivision (Assessor Parcel Number  0319-161-24) [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 20-014] - Engineering Technician Chelsie Fogus provided an 
overview of the proposed Development Agreement. 

IX. Administrative Issues 

A. Overview of a Community Tour Focusing on the Opportunities of Operating Fully 
Integrated Drinking Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Systems [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 20-015] - Water Resource Manager Jennifer Ares and 
Implementation Manager Matthew Porras provided an overview of the proposed 
facility tours for District customers. 

B. Review of Proposed Meter Installation Costs for 2020 [Workshop Memorandum 
No. 20-016] - Implementation Manager Matthew Porras provided an overview of 
the proposed water meter installation costs. 

C. Overview of the Community Meetings to Discuss Proposed Drinking Water, Sewer, 
and Recycled Water Rate Changes [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-017] - 
General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the two community 
meetings used to provide additional information about the adjustment to drinking 
water, sewer and recycled water rates. 

D. Geoscience Budget Amendment Request for the Wilson Creek Basins Tracer 
Study Workplan [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-018] - Water Resource Manager 
Jennifer Ares provided an overview of the tracer study to be conducted at the 
Wilson Creek Spreading Basins. 

E. Discussion Regarding the Notification of Unclaimed Funds [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 20-019] - Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten provided an 
overview of unclaimed funds. 

F. Presentation of the Annual Continuing Disclosure Annual Report (CDAR) 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 20-020] - Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten 
provided an overview of the annual Continuing Disclosure Annual Report. 

G. Review of Proposed Changes to the Yucaipa Valley Water District Conflict of 
Interest Code [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-021] - Chief Financial Officer 
Allison Edmisten provided an overview of proposed changes to the Conflict of 
Interest Code. 

H. Discussion Regarding the Assignment of Individuals to Represent the District in 
Small Claims Court [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-022] - Chief Financial Officer 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 11 of 147



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 4 of 4 

Allison Edmisten provided an overview of the annual assignment of individuals to 
represent the District in small claims court. 

I. Discussion Regarding the Review of Statement of Facts Required by Government 
Code Section 53051 [Workshop Memorandum No. 20-023] - Chief Financial 
Officer Allison Edmisten provided an overview of the Statement of Facts. 

J. Discussion Regarding Resolution No. 2020-xx Approving an Investment Policy 
and Appointment of the General Manager as the District Investment Officer 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 20-024] - Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten 
provided an overview of the Investment Policy. 

X. Director Comments 

None 

XI. Announcements - The future meetings were referenced on the workshop agenda. 

XII. Closed Session - A closed session was not conducted at this meeting. 

XIII. Adjournment - The meeting was adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 12 of 147



Board Awarded Contracts
Consent Calendar Board Workshop - January 21, 2020

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Director 
Memorandum Job or GL #

Job Cost 
Breakdown

Awarded 
Contract 
Amount

Prior 
Payments to 

Date

Pending 
Invoice 
Amount

Total 
Contract 

Payments

Remaining 
Contract 
Amount

Percent 
Remaining

General Operating 
Expenses

Water 
Division 
Funds

Sewer 
Division 
Funds

Recycled 
Division 
Funds

Other 
Funds

Law Office of David L. Wysocki - FY 2019 Legal Services  (Operating) - - *-5-06-54107 - - - - $46,128 $2,588 $48,716

DDB Engineering   (R-Reserves) 15-086 04-19771 - - $35,900 $25,395 $0 $25,395 $10,505 29% $10,505
Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins

Delta Partners $90,000 per year-LegislativeConsult (exp 12/18) W\S Oper 13-079 *-5-06-54109 $90,000 $360,000 $165,000 $7,500 $172,500 $187,500 52% $187,500
Three Year Contract Extension (exp 12/2021) 19-052 *5-06-54109 $270,000

Dudek         (S-Operating) 19-045  
2019-Max Benefit Monitoring for San Timoteo/Yucaipa Mgmt Zones 03-5-06-54109 - - $89,426 $37,459 $8,740 $46,199 $43,227 48% $43,227

Dudek         (S-Operating) 18-055 65-15339  
2018-HMP in San Timoteo Creek 03-5-06-57030 - - $56,340 $53,335 $0 $53,335 $3,005 5% $3,005

Dudek         (S-Operating) 19-044 65-15339  
2019-Habitat Monitoring Program (HMP) in San Timoteo Creek 03-5-06-57030 - - $73,830 $66,135 $1,645 $67,780 $6,050 8% $6,050

Dudek         (W/S Operating) 17-059  
Insepction of Proposed Sites for Remote Telemetry 0*-5-06-54109 - - $10,775 $5,428 $0 $5,428 $5,348 50% $5,348

Dudek         (W/S/R Operating) 17-084 65-26145  
Developing a Comprehensive Database Management System (DMS) 0*-5-06-54109 $89,750 - - $96,350 $92,197 $360 $92,557 $3,793 4% $3,793
Amendment #1 $6,600

Dudek         (Sewer Operating) 19-041  
WWTP BioWin Modeling 03-506-54109 - - $29,235 $0 $20,679 $20,679 $8,557 29% $8,557

ECORP             (W/S Reserves) 02-5-06-54109  
Prepare Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration/Oak Valley Recharge 18-157 77-32719 $47,520 $52,020 $25,974 $0 $25,974 $26,046 50% $26,046
DM 19-039 Ratification of original contract-addt'l sum not to exceed $4500.00 19-093 $4,500

ECORP             (W/S Reserves) 03-502-51003  
YVWD-Salinity and Groundwater Enhancement (Sage) Project W/S Reserves 19-022 88-23792 $9,645 $266 $0 $266 $9,379 97% $9,645

Geoscience   (R-Operating) 04-5-06-54109 $51,710 $49,284 $0 $49,284 $2,426 5% $2,426
Preparation of a groundwater model for the Gateway Basin 14-070 $35,320
CO #1 - preparation of groundwater model 15-010 $16,390

Geoscience   (W-Operating) 02-5-06-54109 $172,006 $161,252 $0 $161,252 $10,754 6% $10,754
Calculation of Water Budgets for Validation of Annual Change in Storage 16-058 $130,236
Exp of the Yucaipa Watershed & Yucaipa Groundwater Basin Model 16-110 $41,770

Geoscience
Pilot Recharge Testing of the Beaumont Basin (S-Reserves) $326,956 18-140 03-5-06-54109 - - $974,251 $530,740 $26,279 $557,019 $417,232 43% $417,232
Amendement #1 -DM 19-057 - $101,464 19-057
Amendement #2 -DM 19-097 - $456,064 19-097
Amendement #3 -DM 19-125 - $89,767 19-125

Geoscience
Monitoring Wells in San Timoteo Cyn 19-076 02-5-06-54109 - - $24,556 $7,902 $1,358 $9,260 $15,297 62% $15,297

Geoscience
Tracer Study Analysis at Wilson Creek Spreading Basins 19-024 02-5-06-54109 - - $34,560 $29,279 $1,148 $30,427 $4,134 12% $4,134

HDR   (W-Operating)
Perform Tracer Study on R13.1 Clearwell at YVRWFF 17-068 02-5-06-54109 $37,726 $41,726 $41,319 $0 $41,319 $407 1% $407

$4,000
Inland Potable Services

Reservoir Cleaning and Inspection Services/expires 2021(Water & Recycled) 18-158 *5-01-51003 - - $175,593 $79,437 $0 $79,437 $96,156 55% $96,156
2019- (15)Reservoirs-43,537.00- DM 19-038 Change Order to Increase 35,900.00 19-038
2020- (16)Reservoirs 54,540.00
2021- (17)Reservoirs-41,616.00

Krieger & Stewart
Initiate Design of R-12.4      (W-Reserves) 04-164 65-295 $74,900 $585,100 $552,636 $0 $552,636 $32,464 6% $32,464
TO#4 Revised 05-075 $600
TO#4, Amendment #2 14-014 $45,000
TO#5- Construction Mgmt Services 14-092 $482,500

District Awarded Contracts

Encumbered Funds - Remaining Contract Amount

 Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 13 of 147



Board Awarded Contracts
Consent Calendar Board Workshop - January 21, 2020

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Director 
Memorandum Job or GL #

Job Cost 
Breakdown

Awarded 
Contract 
Amount

Prior 
Payments to 

Date

Pending 
Invoice 
Amount

Total 
Contract 

Payments

Remaining 
Contract 
Amount

Percent 
Remaining

General Operating 
Expenses

Water 
Division 
Funds

Sewer 
Division 
Funds

Recycled 
Division 
Funds

Other 
FundsDistrict Awarded Contracts

Encumbered Funds - Remaining Contract Amount

TO#5, Amendment #1 - Construction Mmgt Services 16-069 $102,600

TO#5, Design R-13.4 and H-2 Reservoirs for JP Ranch 05-083 65-180 $47,400 $79,000 $50,471 $0 $50,471 $28,529 36% $28,529
60% R-13.4 and 40% H-2  (Developer Funds) 05-083 65-179 $31,600

Prepare a Biological Model of System Processes 19-041 03-5-06-54109 $29,235 $0 $0 $29,235 100% $29,235

Novotx  (Elements)  (W/S Operating) 18-127 *-5-06-54005 $121,100 $121,000 $0 $121,000 $100 0% $100
Elements XS asset management software

One Stop Landscape Supply FY 2019 Sludge Hauling\Reuse (Oper) - - 03-5-02-57031 - - - - $339,822 $23,571 $363,393

Pascal Ludwig/Forstra Filters(W-Reserves) 19-098 02-13004 $338,100 $167,990 $0 $167,990 $170,110 50% $170,110
Three Forsta Filters and Pascal Ludwig for Installation at YVRWFF
Change Order #1 w/Pascal Ludwig - ($3,360.00) 19-137

Platinum Advisors     (W\S Operating)
 2018 Lobbyist N-T-E per month 13-080 *-5-06-54109 - - - - $95,000 $0 $95,000
 2018 Quarterly Filing & Misc. Expenses 02-5-06-54109 - - - - $750 $0 $750

Rain For Rent
Pipeline-Calimesa Lakes Recharge  Study-DM 19-008 was superseded by 19-017 02-5-03-51020 $24,375 $0 $0 $0 $24,375 100% $24,375
DM 19-017

RMC Water & Environment/Woodard & Curran

TO#26, SRF Mgmt Svcs-Calimesa Regional Recycled Pipeline (R-FCC) 14-023 04-5-06-54109 $95,692 $69,361 $0 $69,361 $26,331 28% $26,331

Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins (R-Resvs) 15-086 04-19771 - - $237,668 $236,474 $0 $236,474 $1,194 1% $1,194
Amendment #3 18-085

Scinor Water America/Pascal Ludwig  (S- Reserves) 17-088 03-10311 - - $215,000 $186,074 $0 $186,074 $28,926 13% $28,926
Install UF Modules and Mesh Strainer AT WRWRF

Separation Processes, Inc.                                (W-Reserves) 55-19200
Design & Construction Supports Servs for NF SCRAM 15-047 02-14500 $191,820 $170,980 $0 $170,980 $20,840 11% $20,840   

Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins (R-Resrvs) 15-086 04-19771 - - $42,860 $24,527 $0 $24,527 $18,333 43% $18,333

Feasibility Report for Wochholz SAGE Project 17-043 03-5-06-54109 $67,575 $70,864 $406 $71,270 ($3,695) -5% ($3,695)  

Preliminary Engineering Design Study-SAGE Project 19-106 03-5-06-54109 $32,260 $9,190 $0 $9,190 $23,070 72% $23,070  

WWTP Monitoring Operations & Reporting Enhancement (MORE) (S-Oper) 18-122 03-5-06-54109 $330,436 $118,543 $12,010 $130,553 $199,884 60% $199,884  

WWTP -RCA - Foaming- Improve energy efficiency and treatment process 19-025 03-5-06-54109 $36,800 $30,483 $3,422 $33,905 $2,895 8% $2,895  

Superior Tank - R-16.6 drinking water(Water Fund, Infrastructure Reserves)
Replacement of Drinking Water Reservoir R-16.6 19-138 Task # $565,668 $0 $0 $0 $565,668 100% $565,668

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company (VTD) /EideBailly     (Operating)
FY 2019 Auditing Services $23,900 + $3,500 for Single Audit 15-106 *-5-06-54108 $27,400 $22,800 $0 $22,800 $4,600 17% $4,600

Villalobos and Associates          (W-Operating) 16-064 02-5-06-54109 - - $72,200 $39,064 $0 $39,064 $33,136 46% $33,136
Permitting of Recharge Oper at the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins

GRAND TOTALS $5,308,012 $3,683,495 $109,703 $3,793,199 $2,055,808 - - $453,723 $839,503 $677,956 $56,363 $28,529
 

$453,723 $1,573,822 $28,529

 Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 14 of 147



Check Register - December 2019

Check Date
Check 

Number Payee  Amount 
12/03/2019 35918 Dennis Neff 649.35$            
12/03/2019 35919 Joan Cadiz 886.89$            
12/03/2019 35920 Joe DeSalliers 604.67$            
12/03/2019 35921 Peggy Little 649.21$            
12/03/2019 35922 Robert Wall 649.35$            
12/09/2019 35923 ADS, LLC 4,275.00$         
12/09/2019 35924 All American Sewer Tools 635.57$            
12/09/2019 35925 Ameripride Uniform Services 1,762.19$         
12/09/2019 35926 Aqua-Metric Sales Company 28,554.29$       
12/09/2019 35927 Arrow Staffing 1,947.41$         
12/09/2019 35928 Assoc. SB Cty Special Districts 375.00$            
12/09/2019 35929 Auto Care Clinic 208.50$            
12/09/2019 35930 AutoZone Stores LLC 493.64$            
12/09/2019 35931 Best Home Center 170.22$            
12/09/2019 35932 Brenntag Pacific, Inc 30,210.70$       
12/09/2019 35933 Burgeson's Heating & Air Cond. Inc 684.00$            
12/09/2019 35934 C & B Crushing, Inc. 60.00$              
12/09/2019 35935 California Newspapers Partnership 770.40$            
12/09/2019 35936 Caselle, Inc. 3,220.00$         
12/09/2019 35937 Clark Pest Control 115.00$            
12/09/2019 35938 Clinical Laboratory of San Bernardino 13,710.00$       
12/09/2019 35939 Coverall North America, Inc. 1,331.00$         
12/09/2019 35940 Daily Journal Corporation 635.80$            
12/09/2019 35941 Epic Pest Management 85.00$              
12/09/2019 35942 Fedex 44.07$              
12/09/2019 35943 First American Data Tree, LLC 50.00$              
12/09/2019 35944 Flow N Control, Inc. 3,553.60$         
12/09/2019 35945 Frontier Communications 159.47$            
12/09/2019 35946 G&G Environmental Compliance,Inc 3,570.46$         
12/09/2019 35947 Geoscience Support Services, Inc. 450.00$            
12/09/2019 35948 Hadronex, Inc. 3,815.00$         
12/09/2019 35949 Harrington Ind. Plastic, LLC 2,878.36$         
12/09/2019 35950 Hasa, Inc. 7,375.98$         
12/09/2019 35951 Home Depot U.S.A. Inc 2,656.07$         
12/09/2019 35952 House Of Quality, Parts Plus 54.02$              
12/09/2019 35953 Houston & Harris PCS, Inc. 3,600.00$         
12/09/2019 35954 Inland Water Works Supply Co. 9,320.13$         
12/09/2019 35955 Integrity Hose and Fittings 188.36$            
12/09/2019 35956 JW D'Angelo Co. 43.64$              
12/09/2019 35957 Konica Minolta Business Solutions 1,492.13$         
12/09/2019 35958 Koritas Tires Inc. 350.23$            
12/09/2019 35959 Krieger & Stewart 62,172.12$       
12/09/2019 35960 MBC Applied Environmental Sciences 1,350.00$         
12/09/2019 35961 Merit Oil Company 2,585.29$         
12/09/2019 35962 NetComp Technologies,Inc. 3,810.96$         
12/09/2019 35963 Pangahamo Materials, Inc. 3,025.84$         
12/09/2019 35964 Polydyne Inc. 6,925.72$         

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 15 of 147



Check Register - December 2019

Check Date
Check 

Number Payee  Amount 
12/09/2019 35965 Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc. 28.75$              
12/09/2019 35966 Q Versa, LLC 6,130.39$         
12/09/2019 35967 Rickly Hydrological Co., Inc. 2,064.96$         
12/09/2019 35968 SB CNTY-Solid Waste Mgmt Div 168.13$            
12/09/2019 35969 Separation Processes, Inc. 544.00$            
12/09/2019 35970 South Coast A.Q.M.D. 1,672.26$         
12/09/2019 35971 Southern CA Emergency Medicine, Inc. 75.00$              
12/09/2019 35972 Sunshine Growers Nursery 161.63$            
12/09/2019 35973 T.T. Technologies, Inc. 458.94$            
12/09/2019 35974 Terracon Consultants, Inc. 1,317.75$         
12/09/2019 35975 The Gas Company 266.51$            
12/09/2019 35976 Underground Service Alert Of So. CA 204.70$            
12/09/2019 35977 UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc. 29.69$              
12/09/2019 35978 US Bank 7,677.11$         
12/09/2019 35979 USA BlueBook 1,761.72$         
12/09/2019 35980 USDA Forest Service 65.29$              
12/09/2019 35981 Yucaipa Disposal, Inc. 6,027.59$         
12/09/2019 35982 CA State Disbursement Unit 743.52$            
12/09/2019 35983 Franchise Tax Board 100.00$            
12/09/2019 35984 IBEW Local #1436 580.00$            
12/09/2019 35985 WageWorks Inc. 1,340.00$         
12/10/2019 35986 Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Companies 6,823.00$         
12/10/2019 35987 Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Companies 13,885.41$       
12/10/2019 35988 Concentra 66.50$              
12/10/2019 35989 TPX Communications 2,657.78$         
12/16/2019 35990 David L. Wysocki 4,125.00$         
12/16/2019 35991 Delta Partners, LLC 7,500.00$         
12/16/2019 35992 Geoscience Support Services, Inc. 46,364.85$       
12/16/2019 35993 One Stop Landscape Supply Inc 21,858.00$       
12/16/2019 35994 Separation Processes, Inc. 7,677.50$         
12/16/2019 35995 Woodard & Curran Inc. 975.78$            
12/16/2019 35996 Alpine Springs 54.95$              
12/16/2019 35997 Ameripride Uniform Services 919.16$            
12/16/2019 35998 Atlas Copco Compressors, LLC 17,248.87$       
12/16/2019 35999 AutoZone 1,843.35$         
12/16/2019 36000 B.W. Simmons 2,361.34$         
12/16/2019 36001 Beaumont Basin Watermaster 23,498.00$       
12/16/2019 36002 Best Home Center 43.16$              
12/16/2019 36003 Brenntag Pacific, Inc 19,305.57$       
12/16/2019 36004 Center Electric Services, Inc. 11,252.94$       
12/16/2019 36005 Central Communications 492.62$            
12/16/2019 36006 Corelogic, Inc. 330.00$            
12/16/2019 36007 David Krastel 1,439.01$         
12/16/2019 36008 David Sunden 3,120.59$         
12/16/2019 36009 Deleantje Grossman 839.47$            
12/16/2019 36010 Dunlap Educational Community Assoc 475.00$            
12/16/2019 36011 East Valley Property Mgmt 122.92$            

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 16 of 147



Check Register - December 2019

Check Date
Check 

Number Payee  Amount 
12/16/2019 36012 Environmental Systems Research Institute 25,000.00$       
12/16/2019 36013 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 3,269.27$         
12/16/2019 36014 Fleming & Sons Concrete Pumpin, Inc 1,195.83$         
12/16/2019 36015 Frank Taylor 119.66$            
12/16/2019 36016 Frontier Communications 165.46$            
12/16/2019 36017 Harrington Ind. Plastic, LLC 103.48$            
12/16/2019 36018 Henry Heredia 110.37$            
12/16/2019 36019 House Of Quality, Parts Plus 176.52$            
12/16/2019 36020 Johnny Martin 1,199.44$         
12/16/2019 36021 Joshua Gilliam 2,002.76$         
12/16/2019 36022 JW D'Angelo Co. 7,027.60$         
12/16/2019 36023 KathyJo Ferrira 2,526.49$         
12/16/2019 36024 Kelly Services, Inc. 1,008.40$         
12/16/2019 36025 King Lee Chemical, Co. 13,665.05$       
12/16/2019 36026 Martin Felix 4,106.82$         
12/16/2019 36027 Merit Oil Company 3,698.93$         
12/16/2019 36028 Nalco Company 10,328.10$       
12/16/2019 36029 Neal McPherson 1,013.10$         
12/16/2019 36030 Pacific Coast Landscape & Design, Inc. 4,625.00$         
12/16/2019 36031 Platinum Advisors, LLC 125.00$            
12/16/2019 36032 Ponton Industries, Inc 3,673.56$         
12/16/2019 36033 Red Alert Special Couriers 344.26$            
12/16/2019 36034 Redline 3,802.64$         
12/16/2019 36035 Safeguard Business Systems Inc 131.35$            
12/16/2019 36036 San Bernardino County 135.00$            
12/16/2019 36037 SCCI, Inc. 350.00$            
12/16/2019 36038 Sinclair Rock and Sand Inc. 2,475.00$         
12/16/2019 36039 Smarthire 92.30$              
12/16/2019 36040 Spectrum Business 1,834.00$         
12/16/2019 36041 State of California - Department of Just 32.00$              
12/16/2019 36042 State Water Resources Control Board 43,102.62$       
12/16/2019 36043 The Counseling Team International 225.00$            
12/16/2019 36044 Time Warner Cable 281.30$            
12/16/2019 36045 Titan Electric 1,461.32$         
12/16/2019 36046 Track Technologies 7,500.00$         
12/16/2019 36047 Triumvirate Env Srvcs.,Inc DBA: 1,500.00$         
12/16/2019 36048 Uline, Inc. 1,636.73$         
12/16/2019 36049 UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc. 60.28$              
12/16/2019 36050 Yucaipa Valley Water District 59,038.75$       
12/17/2019 36051 Dinosaur Tire Inc. 70.00$              
12/17/2019 36052 CA State Disbursement Unit 743.52$            
12/17/2019 36053 Franchise Tax Board 100.00$            
12/18/2019 36054 WageWorks Inc. 1,340.00$         
12/23/2019 36055 Addiction Medicine Consultants, Inc. 4,666.00$         
12/23/2019 36056 All American Sewer Tools 44.98$              
12/23/2019 36057 American Water Works Assoc. 286.00$            

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 17 of 147



Check Register - December 2019

Check Date
Check 

Number Payee  Amount 
12/23/2019 36058 Ameripride Uniform Services 894.34$            
12/23/2019 36059 AT&T Mobility 2,516.19$         
12/23/2019 36060 Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo 97.50$              
12/23/2019 36061 Auto Care Clinic 41.70$              
12/23/2019 36062 Bay Alarm Company 5,391.63$         
12/23/2019 36063 BofA Credit Card 5,332.14$         
12/23/2019 36064 Brenntag Pacific, Inc 14,181.87$       
12/23/2019 36065 California Water Environment Association 192.00$            
12/23/2019 36066 California Water Technologies, LLC 4,559.73$         
12/23/2019 36067 Calmat Company 2,699.25$         
12/23/2019 36068 Cal-Mesa Steel Supply, Inc. 215.50$            
12/23/2019 36069 Cal's Towing 50.00$              
12/23/2019 36070 Constant Fire Protection, Inc. 745.00$            
12/23/2019 36071 Contron Scada Systems 3,364.61$         
12/23/2019 36072 Custom Metal Fabrication 30.00$              
12/23/2019 36073 Edward Chung 26.97$              
12/23/2019 36074 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 199.30$            
12/23/2019 36075 Fedex 29.90$              
12/23/2019 36076 Harrington Ind. Plastic, LLC 1,481.20$         
12/23/2019 36077 Houston & Harris PCS, Inc. 3,600.00$         
12/23/2019 36078 JW D'Angelo Co. 15,743.26$       
12/23/2019 36079 Kelly Services, Inc. 1,613.44$         
12/23/2019 36080 Lawyers Title 850.00$            
12/23/2019 36081 MBC Applied Environmental Sciences 1,350.00$         
12/23/2019 36082 Mission Communications, LLC 563.40$            
12/23/2019 36083 NetComp Technologies,Inc. 1,500.00$         
12/23/2019 36084 Novotx 1,323.26$         
12/23/2019 36085 Novotx 3,600.00$         
12/23/2019 36086 Office Solutions Business Products & Ser 1,454.55$         
12/23/2019 36087 Pall Corporation 53,887.98$       
12/23/2019 36088 Plastic-Mart 24,300.64$       
12/23/2019 36089 Quinn Company 476.20$            
12/23/2019 36090 Redline 10,032.28$       
12/23/2019 36091 Risk Sciences 2,918.78$         
12/23/2019 36092 SB CNTY-Solid Waste Mgmt Div 711.12$            
12/23/2019 36093 South Coast A.Q.M.D. 1,114.84$         
12/23/2019 36094 Southern CA Emergency Medicine, Inc. 75.00$              
12/23/2019 36095 Spectrum Business 1,834.00$         
12/23/2019 36096 WESTCAS 825.00$            
12/23/2019 36097 South Coast A.Q.M.D. 65.12$              
12/23/2019 36098 Aflac 3,019.68$         
12/23/2019 36099 Blue Shield of California 3,703.40$         
12/23/2019 36100 CalPERS Health - VOID -$                  
12/23/2019 36101 Nippon Life Insurance Co 2,806.25$         
12/23/2019 36102 Standard Dental Insurance Co. 1,552.24$         
12/23/2019 36103 Standard Insurance Vision Plan 274.60$            
12/23/2019 36104 Western Dental Services Inc. 251.16$            

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 18 of 147



Check Register - December 2019

Check Date
Check 

Number Payee  Amount 
12/23/2019 36105 WageWorks, Inc. 186.50$            
12/23/2019 36106 Joan Cadiz 903.32$            
12/23/2019 36107 Joe DeSalliers 592.13$            
12/23/2019 36108 Peggy Little 640.51$            
12/23/2019 36109 Robert Wall 785.37$            

  839,850.10$     

12/06/2019 electronic pmt CalPERS Health 95,074.24$       
12/06/2019 electronic pmt VOYA 457 Retirement Plan 5,094.60$         
12/06/2019 electronic pmt EDD - State of California 10,467.85$       
12/06/2019 electronic pmt IRS 59,181.59$       
12/06/2019 electronic pmt CalPERS 457 & Loan 34,868.02$       
12/06/2019 electronic pmt CalPERS Retirement 31,028.12$       
12/06/2019 electronic pmt Payroll Direct Deposit 149,749.26$     
12/20/2019 electronic pmt EDD - State of California 8,145.06$         
12/20/2019 electronic pmt IRS 53,603.39$       
12/20/2019 electronic pmt CalPERS 457 & Loan 24,900.82$       
12/20/2019 electronic pmt CalPERS Retirement 30,860.59$       
12/20/2019 electronic pmt CalPERS Health 98,595.92$       
12/20/2019 electronic pmt VOYA 457 Retirement Plan 3,694.60$         
12/20/2019 electronic pmt Payroll Direct Deposit 145,048.50$     

750,312.56$     

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 19 of 147



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 20 of 147



 
 
Opinion 

Editorial: Getting serious about California’s 

housing crisis means moving SB 50 forward 

 
 

Senate Bill 50 is back — new, improved, still controversial and definitely worth consideration. 

A bold bill that could radically reshape housing in California by, among other things, doing away 
with single-family zoning across the state, SB 50 was gaining traction last spring when it was 
shelved unceremoniously in the Senate Appropriations Committee. There was no debate. No 
opportunity for compromise. It was just put on ice, with the promise by legislative leaders of more 
discussions in the future. 

Now, eight months later, its author, Sen. Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco) has returned with a 
revised bill that is more sensitive to local concerns and has a better chance of success — that is, if 
lawmakers vote to keep it alive for more discussion and compromise. 

SB 50 has to pass the state Senate by Jan. 31. If it does, it can still be amended and revised, or 
voted down in the Assembly. If it doesn’t, it dies. Though the bill is not perfect, it deserves to be 
moved forward. 

It should be abundantly clear by now that California has a drastic housing shortage that is 
exacerbating poverty and homelessness and driving up costs for all California 
residents. Poll after poll shows that homelessness and the cost of housing are the most pressing 
issues in the state and that more and more residents are considering fleeing the state because of 
the housing crisis. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 21 of 147

https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2020-01-06/sb-50-changes-single-family-zoning-california
https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2020-01-06/sb-50-changes-single-family-zoning-california
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB50
https://calmatters.org/blogs/california-election-2020/2019/10/surveys-poll-gavin-newsom-homelessness-housing-ppic/
https://www.ppic.org/publication/californias-future-housing/


The roots of the shortage are simple: California has failed to construct enough housing to keep up 
with population growth. The state must build 180,000 units of housing each year just to keep up 
with demand, but it has averaged only 80,000 a year over the last decade, according to 
the California Department of Housing and Community Development. One big reason? Zoning 
restrictions dramatically limit the number of homes that can be built. 

SB 50, as initially proposed, would override local zoning laws in certain areas, allowing mid-rise 
apartment buildings to be constructed within a half-mile of subway stops or within a quarter-mile 
of high-frequency bus stops, or in “jobs-rich” communities. This would be true even in 
neighborhoods currently zoned for single-family housing. The bill would also allow property 
owners to convert single-family houses anywhere in the state into four-unit apartment houses, 
although they would have to work within the same general size and shape of the existing structure. 

Last week, as the Legislature started work for the new year, Wiener unveiled a change in the bill 
designed to assuage one of the biggest concerns about the original proposal: that by overriding 
zoning rules, the bill usurps local authority and denies well-intentioned communities the chance 
to spur housing on their own terms and in their own manner. 

Wiener says he heard from mayors and city officials that they supported the goal of the bill — to 
encourage more affordable and market-rate housing near transit and jobs — but that they wanted 
the flexibility to decide where the density should be. The revised SB 50 allows cities two years to 
adopt their own plans; if they fail to, the bill’s one-size-fits-all zoning takes effect. 

The local plans would have to zone for as much housing as would be allowed under the original 
SB 50 requirements, without increasing car travel or concentrating the new homes in low-income 
areas. For example, a city could allow taller apartment buildings in one neighborhood but only 
smaller apartment buildings in another that seemed less suited to greater density. Communities 
deemed to be at risk of gentrification and displacement would have five years to develop their 
alternative plans. 

The local option is important. It’s generally preferable to have the state set housing targets and let 
local officials — who are closest to the people most affected by land-use decisions — figure out 
how to meet them. 

There is still a lot more work to be done. Some community groups worry that the bill gives away 
too much to real estate developers and has too few protections for low-income people. Are the 
tenant and community protections sufficient to limit gentrification and displacement? Should the 
state demand more affordable housing from developers that take advantage of upzoning? Is two 
years enough time for cities to develop and adopt a local plan? What exactly is a “sensitive 
community” or a “jobs-rich” area? 

Still, there has been significant progress made since last year. And the only way to make the bill 
better — and to get serious reform to ease the housing shortage — is to keep it moving beyond 
Jan. 31. 

Now is the time for Senate President Pro Tem Toni Atkins (D-San Diego) and Gov. Gavin Newsom 
to show they’re serious about addressing California’s housing crisis by moving this bill on to the 
Assembly. 

 

Source: https://www.latimes.com/opinion/story/2020-01-11/sb50-amendments-california-housing-crisis 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 22 of 147

https://hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/docs/California's-Housing-Future-Full-Public-Draft.pdf
https://www.latimes.com/opinion/story/2020-01-11/sb50-amendments-california-housing-crisis


 
 

Earlier this month, California state senator Scott Wiener began the third year of his push 
for a state law to override local zoning and authorize midsize apartment buildings near 
transit stops. The latest version of his bill, SB 50, comes with a twist that augurs well for 
its passage and eventual impact.  

The bill tackles a thorny problem. Longtime residents, especially homeowners, resist 
neighborhood change. They’re also the dominant force in local politics. The preserve-the-
neighborhood norm would be innocuous if it was limited to a few locales, but when all of 
a metro region’s municipalities throw up barricades to new housing—and just as 
environmentalists are rallying to protect exurban greenfields—the cumulative effect is 
disastrous: wildly unaffordable housing, a working-class exodus, sprawling homeless 
encampments, and enormous foregone productivity. This is the story of coastal California 
since the seventies. 

The ambition of SB 50 is to turn the clock back to an earlier era—not just pre-1970, but 
before the Great Depression, when single-family homes in growing cities were commonly 
torn down and replaced by small apartment buildings. After World War II, this pattern of 
incremental densification largely disappeared. Today, the expansion of urban housing 
stock is basically confined to formerly industrial and commercial zones. The majority of 
buildable land in major cities remains locked up in the zoning straightjacket. Once a tract 
has been zoned and developed for single-family homes, it’s stuck. 

Two questions have dogged Wiener’s effort to loosen the straitjacket. First, how could a 
bill that upsets so many homeowners and local officials ever pass? And second, even if 
the bill passes, what’s to keep homeowner-dominated cities from making the nominally 
permissible new housing practically impossible to build? To mollify opponents, Wiener 
has made it clear that his bill would not touch local authority over demolition controls, 
design standards, permitting procedures, impact fees, and more. But the less that the bill 
preempts, the easier it will be to evade. 

The new version of SB 50 deftly resolves this dilemma. Instead of immediately “up-
zoning” all residential parcels within a half mile of a transit stop—as the prior versions 
would have done—the bill defines a default zoning “envelope” for these parcels. Local 
governments will get two years either to accept the default or propose an alternative “local 
flexibility plan” that creates an equivalent amount of developable space in the aggregate, 
while also scoring well on certain transit and fair-housing metrics. A flexibility plan takes 
effect only if approved by the state housing department; otherwise, the SB 50 up-zoning 
kicks in, by default.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 23 of 147

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB50
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/perspectives-on-politics/article/who-participates-in-local-government-evidence-from-meeting-minutes/C6505940E607B6392C4A8F53A9363DB1
https://lao.ca.gov/reports/2015/finance/housing-costs/housing-costs.pdf
https://www.mercurynews.com/2020/01/09/not-the-golden-state-anymore-middle-and-low-income-people-leaving-california/
https://calmatters.org/explainers/californias-homelessness-crisis-explained/
https://calmatters.org/explainers/californias-homelessness-crisis-explained/
https://pubs.aeaweb.org/doi/pdf/10.1257/jep.32.1.3
https://lao.ca.gov/Infographics/californias-high-housing-costs
https://www.buildzoom.com/blog/pockets-of-dense-construction-in-a-dormant-suburban-interior
https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2019/06/18/upshot/cities-across-america-question-single-family-zoning.html
https://law.stanford.edu/event/robert-c-ellickson-yale-law-school-the-zoning-strait-jacket-evidence-from-the-silicon-valley-greater-new-haven-and-greater-austin/
https://medium.com/@Scott_Wiener/sb-827-retains-an-awful-lot-of-local-control-and-community-planning-b1d111fc1007
https://poseidon01.ssrn.com/delivery.php?ID=119069021086105122020093078000111009051005086011033030075065099086111101018121121027031035006052015046051003089093126086118110114073094012045089100024110109120121066050047064121104116102009005076090110083065027109089125007121030065103088016089088001&EXT=pdf


 

The provision for local flexibility plans should make SB 50 both easier to pass and more 
resistant to local gamesmanship. Though some local governments may pursue the old 
strategy of regulatory obstruction, that approach carries legal risk. The more prudent 
course for many local officials will involve submitting a local flexibility plan that lightens 
the density load on their most resistant constituents while authorizing commensurately 
greater heights and residential density in more supportive neighborhoods, as well as in 
formerly commercial or industrial zones. 

Once a local government follows this path, the state housing department will exert 
significant control over the stratagems by which a municipality might kill development on 
newly up-zoned sites. A local flexibility plan must “increase overall feasible housing 
capacity,” as the new SB 50 declares. To deliver on that goal, the state agency could 
insist that a flexibility plan put reasonable limits on fees, permitting times, demolition 
controls, and more. 

The state agency might even allow regional local governments to exchange “SB 50 
density” with one another. Beverly Hills mayor John Mirisch has made a name for 
himself fighting SB 50. If another Southern California city were willing to take Beverly 
Hills’s mandated density—for a price—Mirisch could propose a deal, perhaps even 
subsidizing an expansion of the other city’s transit system. His wealthy constituents would 
have no trouble affording it. However outlandish Beverly Hills’s land-use practices may 
be, California will be better off if Mirisch devotes his formidable resources to wheeling and 
dealing over flexibility plans, rather than spearheading a campaign for SB 50’s repeal. 

California has long been the poster child for housing-policy dysfunction, but the problems 
facing San Francisco, Los Angeles, San Jose, and San Diego are also playing out 
in superstar cities across the nation and worldwide. The new SB 50 is a model that can 
travel. Urbanists everywhere should take heed. 

Source: City Journal https://www.city-journal.org/sb50-local-flexibility-plan 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 24 of 147

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/California_Housing_Accountability_Act
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB50
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB50
https://calmatters.org/commentary/housing-crisis-5/
https://www.zillow.com/beverly-hills-ca/home-values/
https://www.aeaweb.org/articles?id=10.1257/pol.5.4.167
https://www.city-journal.org/sb50-local-flexibility-plan


 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 25 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-001 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: PUBLIC HEARING - Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-01 Setting Rates, 
Fees, and Charges for Drinking Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Service 

Recommendation: That the Board conduct a public hearing to receive comments and 
consider the adoption of Resolution No. 2020-01 Setting Rates, Fees, 
and Charges for Drinking Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Service. 

 
On August 17, 2011, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District adopted 
Resolution No. 18-2011 setting drinking water, recycled water, and sewer service charges.   
 
While the adopted rate schedule 
improved the overall financial 
health of the District, the ongoing 
reduction in water use associated 
with the recent drought, water 
efficiency measures, and 
implementation of water 
conservation projects has 
resulted in a reduction of the 
overall quantity of water sold by 
the District over the past several 
years. 
 
In addition to reduced water 
consumption, the District is also 
managing a water and sewer 
system with facilities that are 
approaching the end of their 
useful lives. 
 
The District has completed a 
Comprehensive Rate Study that 
carefully analyzed these trends 
and provided a 50-year 
projection of the financial needs 
necessary to maintain the infrastructure that serves our community.   
 
On December 3, 2019, the Board of Directors took action to: (1) Approve the Comprehensive 
Rate Study dated December 3, 2019; (2) Ratify the General Manager’s authorization to initiate 
the Proposition 218 process; and (3) Set a public hearing for January 21, 2020 at 6:00 pm to 
consider a Resolution No. 2020-01 (attached). 

3,
67

0,
32

0

3,
41

7,
55

0

3,
77

5,
78

0

4,
07

8,
85

0

3,
81

9,
95

5

3,
81

2,
68

0

3,
54

2,
90

0

3,
25

0,
49

3

3,
46

2,
49

7

3,
49

0,
26

3

3,
59

5,
20

5

3,
24

1,
93

4

2,
69

6,
36

8

2,
96

2,
51

2

3,
25

4,
36

6

2,
95

8,
14

7

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

FY
 2

0
0

4

FY
 2

0
0

5

FY
 2

0
0

6

FY
 2

0
0

7

FY
 2

0
0

8

FY
 2

0
0

9

FY
 2

0
1

0

FY
 2

0
1

1

FY
 2

0
1

2

FY
 2

0
1

3

FY
 2

0
1

4

FY
 2

0
1

5

FY
 2

0
1

6

FY
 2

0
1

7

FY
 2

0
1

8

FY
 2

0
1

9

D
ri

n
ki

n
g 

W
te

r 
C

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 (
kg

al
)

Annual Drinking Water Consumption (kgal)

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 26 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 2 of 32 

 

PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 
 
 

The following process was developed to encourage and facilitate public participation by 
identifying when public comments and testimony are received during the agenda item.  

 

Resolution No. 2020-01 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SETTING RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 

FOR DRINKING WATER, SEWER, AND RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 
 
_____ Staff Presentation - A District staff member will provide a brief presentation and 

overview of this agenda item. 
 
_____ Questions by the Board of Directors to District Staff - The Board President will ask 

if there are any questions at this time from board members based on the staff 
presentation. 

 
_____ Open the Public Hearing - The Board President will open the public hearing stating 

the time of day to be recorded in the board meeting minutes. 
 
_____ Comments from the Public and Property Owners - The Board of Directors will 

request written and oral comments from the public as part of the deliberation and 
consideration process.  The Board of Directors will be focused on receiving information 
to assist in the decision-making process and will not answer questions or debate an 
issue.  This portion of the public hearing process provides an opportunity for the public 
and property owners to enter information into the record that should be considered by 
the Board of Directors. 

 
_____ Close the Public Hearing - The Board President will close the public hearing stating 

the time of day to be recorded in the board meeting minutes. 
 
_____ Final Comments by District Staff - The District staff may provide additional 

information and clarification of issues discussed during the public hearing process to 
assist the deliberation by the Board of Directors. 

 
_____ Questions by the Board of Directors - The Board President will determine if there 

are any questions from the Board of Directors. 
 
_____ Entertain a motion from the Board - The Board President will ask for a motion from 

the Board of Directors based on information presented. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 27 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 3 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 28 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 4 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 29 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 5 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 30 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 6 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 31 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 7 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 32 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 8 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 33 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 9 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 34 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 10 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 35 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 11 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 36 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 12 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 37 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 13 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 38 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 14 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 39 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 15 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 40 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 16 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 41 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 17 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 42 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 18 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 43 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 19 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 44 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 20 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 45 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 21 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 46 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 22 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 47 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 23 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 48 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 24 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 49 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 25 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 50 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 26 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 51 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 27 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 52 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 28 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 53 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 29 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 54 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 30 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 55 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 31 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 56 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-001 Page 32 of 32 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 57 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-002 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Chelsie Fogus, Administrative Assistant I 

Subject: Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2020-01 to Provide Drinking 
Water and Sewer Service to 13009 4th Street (APN 0319-161-24) a 16 Unit 
Private Single Lot Subdivision - Yucaipa 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the Board President to execute Development 
Agreement No 2020-01. 

 
The District staff is working on a new development agreement with Wayne Simmons for water and 
sewer service to the 16 private tenant units within a single parcel of land located at 13009 4th Street 
between Wildwood Canyon Road and Avenue E, in the city of Yucaipa.  District staff has prepared 
a draft development agreement to document the terms and conditions for the water and sewer 
services to this project.   
 
The development agreement is attached for your review and consideration. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 58 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 2 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 59 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 3 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 60 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 4 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 61 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 5 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 62 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 6 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 63 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 7 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 64 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 8 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 65 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 9 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 66 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 10 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 67 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 11 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 68 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 12 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 69 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 13 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 70 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 14 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 71 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 15 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 72 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-002  Page 16 of 16 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 73 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-003 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on 
December 31, 2019 

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial report. 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. The report has been divided into five sections to clearly disseminate information 
pertaining to the financial status of the District.  Please remember that the following financial 
information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance and Cash Flow Reports 
[Detailed information can be found on page 7 to 8 of 25] 

 
The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District.  A summary of the report is as follows: 
 

Fund Source Operating Funds Restricted Funds Total Funds 

Water Division $        4,751,065.03 $      (1,140,324.38) $        3,610,740.65 

Sewer Division $        6,914,174.25 $      (3,297,867.89) $        3,616,306.36 

Recycled Water Division $           380,840.18 $        2,561,186.19 $        2,942,026.37 

Total $      12,046,079.46 $      (1,877,006.08) $      10,169,073.38               

 

($10,000,000)

($5,000,000)

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

O
ct

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

D
ec

-1
7

Ja
n

-1
8

Fe
b

-1
8

M
ar

-1
8

A
p

r-
1

8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n

-1
8

Ju
l-

1
8

A
u

g-
1

8

Se
p

-1
8

O
ct

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

D
ec

-1
8

Ja
n

-1
9

Fe
b

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

A
u

g-
1

9

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
ec

-1
9

Fund Balance

Drinking Water Fund - Operating Drinking Water Fund - Restricted

Sewer Fund - Operating Sewer Fund - Restricted

Recycled Water Fund - Operating Recycled Water Fund - Restricted

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 74 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 2 of 25 

 

 
Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy. 
 
The Cash Flow Report provides a list of the debt service payment due dates and amounts as well 
as the cash flow requirements for debt service for each month of the fiscal year.    

 
Cash Disbursement Report 

[Detailed information can be found on pages 9 to 13 of 25] 
 
The cash disbursement report lists each check and electronic payment processed during the 
month of December 2019.  All payments are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and 
completeness, checks are usually signed by the General Manager and one Director but may be 
signed by two Directors.  The Chief Financial Officer will make any check, payment, invoice or 
supporting documentation available for review to any board member upon request.   
 

 Number Processed Amount Processed 

Checks 192 $                839,850.10 

Electronic Payments 14 $                750,312.56 

Total 206 $             1,590,162.66 

 

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $18,000,000

Cash Position

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

0

100

200

300

400

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

t

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Number of Payments Processed

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

 $-

 $2

 $4

 $6

 $8

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

t

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

M
ill

io
n

s

$ Amt of Payments Processed

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 75 of 147



Financial Account Information 
 

The District currently deposits all revenue received via mail or in person into the Deposit Checking 
account.  All revenue received through Xpress Bill Pay is kept in a separate account and 
transferred weekly to the Deposit Checking account.  The General Checking account is used as 
a sole processing account for all District checks and electronic payroll.  The Investment Checking 
account is used for the purchase and redemption of US treasury notes and bills and for the 
transfer of LAIF funds.  The US treasury notes and bills are booked at cost. 
 
The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account administered by the State of California.  
Additional information on the LAIF account is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 
Monthly Revenue Allocation: 
 

Funding Source Total 

Utility Bill Payments $        1,644,491.55 

Deposits $                      0.00 

Misc. Water Related Activities $             91,743.47 

Misc. Sewer Related Activities $           208,224.00 

Misc. Recycled Related Activities $             96,147.04 

Total $        2,040,606.06                 

 

 
 

 
Summary of Utility Bill Payments: 

 

Payment Method Number of 
Payments 

% of Total 
Received 

Mail/Counter 1,738 13.59% 

Xpress Bill Pay 11,047 86.41% 

Total 12,785 100.00% 

 $-

 $300,000

 $600,000

 $900,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,500,000

 $1,800,000

 $2,100,000

 $2,400,000

 $2,700,000

 Utility Bill Payments Deposits Misc Water Misc Sewer Misc Recycled

Monthly Revenue Allocation

2017-18 Dec 2018-19 Dec 2019-20 Dec

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 76 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 4 of 25 

 

 

 Mail/Counter

Payment Center

Credit Card

Electronic/    Rapid Pay

Web Site

ACH Auto Pay

Xpress Bill Pay

Total

Type of Payments

2019-20 Dec 2018-19 Dec 2017-18 Dec

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 77 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 5 of 25 

 

Summary of Property Tax Revenue: 
 

Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Amount Percentage 

Property Taxes $     1,871,644  $    3,875,000       48.30% 

 
 

Investment Summary  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 14 to 15 of 25] 

 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF.  The yields for 
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction.  The historical annual 
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by 
the District and available for review. 
 
Investment Policy Disclosure - The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment 
Policy and State law.  The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management 
(Bank of America Corporation) for Treasury investments.  The District expects to meet its 
expenditure requirements for the next six months. 
 

Fiscal Year 2019-20 Detail Budget Status 
[Detailed information will be available at the Board workshop] 

 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2019-20 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

 
 
  

$
3

,0
7

9
,0

6
4

.6
5

 

$
3

,1
9

1
,7

9
2

.3
7

 

$
3

,2
7

3
,2

1
6

.0
1

 

$
1

,8
7

1
,6

4
4

.6
1

 

$
2

,9
8

8
,6

3
4

.3
8

 

$
3

,1
3

2
,4

5
6

.6
8

 

$
3

,2
7

2
,9

1
6

.0
1

 

$
3

,8
7

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 2016-17  2017-18  2018-19  2019-20

Property Taxes - Actual vs. Budget

Actual Allocation/Budget

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 78 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 6 of 25 

 

Questions or Comments 
 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Chief Financial Officer directly.  If you need additional information, the members of the 
Administrative Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may 
desire. 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 79 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 7 of 25 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 80 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 8 of 25 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 81 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 9 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 82 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 10 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 83 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 11 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 84 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 12 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 85 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 13 of 25 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 86 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 14 of 25 

 

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 87 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 15 of 25 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 88 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 16 of 25 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 89 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 17 of 25 

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 90 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 18 of 25 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 91 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 19 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 92 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 20 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 93 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 21 of 25 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 94 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 22 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 95 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 23 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 96 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 24 of 25 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 97 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-003 Page 25 of 25 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 98 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-004 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Consideration to Modify the Microfiltration Drain Piping at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a contract for 
the drain modification with Pascal & Ludwig for a sum not to exceed 
$9,968. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility was completed in 2007.  The microfiltration 
cleaning process currently drains on the floor in the basement due to the fact that the volume of 
the water exceeds the drain piping thus allowing the excess to flow out through the floor drains.  
This is causing corrosion on the staircase and surrounding supports.  
 
The event described above occurs daily in warmer weather, high demand times of the year and 
every other day the rest of the time.  
 
Part of the SCRAM project was to correct this with the plumbing modification as outlined and seen 
in the attached drawings.  
 
District staff is requesting your consideration to authorize Pascal & Ludwig to modify the drain 
piping at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility summarized above and found in 
the attached quote in the amount not to exceed $9,968. This project will be funded by Water Fund, 
Depreciation Reserves [G/L Account #02-000-10310]. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 99 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-004  Page 2 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 100 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-004  Page 3 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 101 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-004  Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 102 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-004  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 103 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-005 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Ratification of Authorization to Inspect the Influent Pipe at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility  

Recommendation: That the Board ratify the influent pipe inspection by Harper & Associates 
Engineering Inc. for a sum not to exceed $3,200. 

 
One of the crucial items on the list of 
maintenance tasks during the annual 
shutdown of the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility is to inspect the 
influent and/or effluent pipe of the plant.  
Last year, the effluent pipe was inspected 
and it was determined there existed no 
significant corrosion or repairs were 
necessary.  This year, the 1000’ influent 
pipe is scheduled to be inspected.  This is 
from the free surface structure to the 
microfiltration basket strainers. 
 
In case there are repairs needed, J. Colon 
Coatings completed the combined plant 
effluent coating repairs 3 years ago and the 
effluent pipe repairs 2 years ago.  These 
repairs were a great success as they are in 
great shape this year.  J. Colon also 
repaired some corrosion discovered in an 
inspection of this line approximately 6 
years ago. 
 
District staff is requesting your 
consideration to ratify Harper & Associates 
Engineering, Inc. to inspect the plant 
influent water line summarized above and 
found in the attached quote in the amount 
not to exceed $3,200.   This project will be 
funded by Water Fund, Depreciation 
Reserves [G/L Account #02-000-10310]. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 104 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-005  Page 2 of 4 

   
 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 105 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-005  Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 106 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-005  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 107 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-006 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Ratification to Replace the Dissolved Air Floatation (DAF) Recirculation 
Pumps and Motors at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

Recommendation: That the Board ratify the replacement of the DAF motors and pumps 
with R.F. MacDonald Co. for a sum not to exceed $13,775. 

 
The original Dissolved Air Floatation (DAF) 
motors were comprised of stamped feet that are 
integrated within the motor housing.  This design 
is not optimal for the frequency of operation within 
the process.  As a result, a dozen motor to pump 
couplings have been replaced due to the 
movement caused by the design. 
 
The quote attached is for two replacement motors 
that have integrated feet to bolt down the motors 
on the ANSI platforms which will result in a 
durable and secure attachment. 
 
Also attached, is a quote for two replacement 
Fybroc fiberglass construction pumps that are 
best suited for the chemicals used in the process.  
The picture to the right is the impeller from the 
DAF #2 pump which is catastrophically worn due 
to the chemicals and the worn out shaft 
clearances. 
 
DAF #1 is ready for service but the pump is of the same age as #2 and most likely is a close 
resemblance to the picture and should be replaced with warmer weather and higher demand 
quickly approaching. 
 
The Fybroc pumps utilize industrial water for seal water to ensure durability and maximize life.  
This is present at YVRWFF for the CIP Waste Sump which utilizes 3 Fybroc pumps.  District staff 
will plumb the necessary seal water to each pump to ensure proper operation.  
 
District staff is requesting your consideration to ratify 2 DAF motors and 2 DAF pumps 
summarized above with R. F. MacDonald Co. and found in the attached quotes in the amount not 
to exceed $13,775.  This project will be funded by Water Fund, Depreciation Reserves [G/L 
Account #02-000-10310]. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 108 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-006  Page 2 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 109 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-006  Page 3 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 110 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-007 

Date:  January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Review of Proposed Meter Installation Costs for 2020 

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-02. 

 
The District staff compiled and evaluated the current actual cost of the parts, labor, and overhead 
to develop the 2020 Meter Installation Fee.  In the table below, the Proposed 2020 Fee column 
reflects the current actual costs associated with each part and estimated labor required to 
complete the installation of the respective meter installation type.   
 

Meter Installation Fee 

Meter Installation Type 
2017 
Fee 

2018 
Fee 

2019 
Fee 

Proposed 
2020 Fee 

1" Drinking Water Meter set with Fire 
Sprinklers on Dual Plumbed Residence 

$1,085 $1,030 $1,026 $982 

1" Drinking Water Meter set with Fire 
Sprinklers 

$910 $860 $866 $830 

3/4" Drinking Water Meter Set $490 $490 $499 $471 

1" Recycled Water Meter Set $570 $560 $593 $555 

3/4" Recycled Water Meter Set $490 $490 $499 $471 

 
District staff recommends the updating the fees as reflected in the Meter Installation Fee table 
above. 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 111 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-007  Page 2 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT UPDATING THE WATER METER 
INSTALLATION FEE FOR DRINKING WATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) has updated the cost for installing 
drinking water and recycled water meters based on the latest actual cost evaluation associated 
with providing this service; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has updated the water meter service standards and individual parts list 
to address residential fire sprinkler requirements, dual-plumbed backflow protection, and 
automated meter infrastructure technology; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District staff has presented the cost information and options for cost recovery at 
publicly noticed board workshops. 
 

____________________ 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of Yucaipa Valley Water District, based on the 
foregoing Recitals, do hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER as follows: 
 

 
1. Drinking Water and Recycled Water Meter Installation Charge.  The cost associated with the 

installation of water meters shall be as follows: 
 

Classification of Water Meter Installation 
Water Meter 

Installation Fee 

¾” Drinking Water Meter Installation $471 

¾” Recycled Water Meter Installation $471 

1” Recycled Water Meter Installation $555 

1” Drinking Water Meter Installation with Fire Sprinklers $830 

1” Drinking Water Meter Installation with Fire Sprinklers at a Dual-
Plumbed Residential Dwelling 

$982 

 
The Water Meter Installation Fee shall be paid prior to scheduling the installation of the water 
meter. 
 

2. Larger Drinking Water and Recycled Water Meter Installation Charge.  The charge for the 
installation of a larger water meter and/or a water meter classification not provided above 
shall be the actual cost of all labor, material, and equipment charges, plus employee benefits, 
overhead, and administrative surcharges pursuant to the latest District resolution.  A deposit 
of the estimated water meter installation cost shall be paid prior to scheduling the work.  Any 
variance from the estimated water meter installation cost shall be remedied by District staff 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 112 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-007  Page 3 of 3 

and the customer within 30 days following the activation of the water meter.  Typical 
delinquent charges shall apply for unpaid amounts owed to the District. 

 
3. Effective Date.  Previous resolutions regarding water meter installation charges are hereby 

superseded and replaced by the applicable sections identified above.  This Resolution shall 
be effective immediately and shall remain in effect until such time as it is rescinded or 
superseded.   

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 21th day of January 2020. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 113 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-008 

Date: January 21, 2020 

From: Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

Subject: Preparation of the Wilson Creek Basin Tracer Study Workplan 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the 
Geoscience Budget Amendment for the Wilson Creek Basins Tracer 
Study Workplan for a sum not to exceed $7,930. 

 
In 2013, the United States Geological Society conducted 
an extrinsic tracer study using sulfur hexafluoride to 
validate underground retention time in order to validate 
necessary travel time to the primary and secondary 
boundary zones near drinking water wells. 
 

The tracer was 
not recovered in 
the downgradient 
monitoring wells.  
As a result, in April 2015 Geoscience completed the 
Focused Groundwater Model for Recycled Water Use 
Evaluation in the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins using 
computer modeling.  The model verified a relatively long 
travel time to District wells which may explain why the 
extrinsic tracer was not recovered downstream.   
 
The tracer study model was needed to compile the travel 
time scenarios for the Title 22 Recycled Water Engineering 
Report which has been completed and reviewed by the 
Department of Drinking Water (DDW) and the State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB).   
 
While reviewing the Title 22 Recycled Water Engineering 
Report, the SWRCB required a second updated tracer 
study to validate the travel time of recycled water to District 
drinking water wells.  The initial requirement consists of a 
work plan of the tracer testing process.   
 
On March 5, 2019 the Board of Directors approved [Director 
Memorandum No. 19-024] a proposal from Geoscience to 
prepare a work plan for tracer testing in the Wilson Creek 
Basins.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 114 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-008  Page 2 of 3 

The State Water Resources Control Board reviewed the workplan from Geoscience and 
submitted comments via conference call with District Staff and Geoscience on December 13, 
2019.  District staff has received an amendment from Geoscience to revise the tracer study work 
plan to meet the SWRCB specifications. 
 
Financial Impact 
 
This amendment will be paid for by the Water Fund, Professional Services [G/L Account # 02-506-
54109].  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 115 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-008  Page 3 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 116 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-009 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Presentation of the Continuing Disclosure Annual Report (CDAR) 

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the Continuing Disclosure Annual 
Report (CDAR). 

 
On December 17, 2014, the Board approved a policy for Disclosure Procedures Related to the 
Issuance of Municipal Debt Obligations [Director Memorandum 14-103].  This policy outlines the 
annual obligations related to outstanding debt.  The District currently has outstanding Water 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A.  Each year after the Audited Financial Statements are 
completed, District staff files the Continuing Disclosure Annual Report for these outstanding 
bonds.   
 
As part of the debt covenant for these revenue bonds, the District shall maintain a debt coverage 
ratio of 1.10 or higher.  This ratio is calculated by comparing the annual net revenue to the annual 
debt service payment.  The ratio calculated using the 2018-19 Audited Financial Statements has 
increased from 0.76 in the prior year to 2.11.  However, this is the ratio utilizing Developer Impact 
Fees.  If we remove that source of revenue, the ratio is 1.01.  This ratio does not result in the 
District being in default, however, District staff is required to recommend solutions in the current 
fiscal year to bring the debt coverage ratio back to a minimum of 1.10.  The results of the rate 
study that is scheduled for public hearing on January 21, 2020 would meet the minimum debt 
coverage ratio of 1.10.   
 
Attached is the draft CDAR report, which is currently being finalized, the only anticipated change 
will be our audited financial statements being included as part of the final report.       

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 117 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-009  Page 2 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 118 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-009  Page 3 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 119 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-009  Page 4 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 120 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-009  Page 5 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 121 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-009  Page 6 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 122 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-009  Page 7 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 123 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-010 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Assignment of Individuals to Represent the 
District in Small Claims Court 

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-03. 

 
Every year the Board of Directors updates and adopts a resolution appointing representatives to 
act on behalf of the District in small claims court.  The following resolution will be presented at the 
next board meeting for possible adoption. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 124 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-010  Page 2 of 2 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 125 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-011 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Review of Statement of Facts Required by 
Government Code Section 53051 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the General Manager to file the Statement of 
Facts. 

 
Government Code Section 53051 requires public agencies to regularly update a Statement of 
Facts with the California Secretary of State and the county clerks.   
 
The District staff will submit an updated Statement of Facts every January to ensure the document 
on file is complete and accurate.   
 

California Government Code Section 53050-53051 

 

53050.  The term "public agency," as used in this article, means a 

district, public authority, public agency, and any other political 

subdivision or public corporation in the state, but does not include the 

state or a county, city and county, or city. 

 

53051.  (a) Within seventy (70) days after the date of commencement of 

its legal existence, the governing body of each public agency shall file 

with the Secretary of State on a form prescribed by the Secretary of 

State and also with the county clerk of each county in which the public 

agency maintains an office, a statement of the following facts: 

1. The full, legal name of the public agency. 

2. The official mailing address of the governing body of the public 

agency. 

3. The name and residence or business address of each member of 

the governing body of the public agency. 

4. The name, title, and residence or business address of the 

chairman, president, or other presiding officer, and clerk or 

secretary of the governing body of such public agency. 

 

(b) Within 10 days after any change in the facts required to be stated 

pursuant to subdivision (a), an amended statement containing the 

information required by subdivision (a) shall be filed as provided 

therein. The information submitted to the Secretary of State shall be 

on a form prescribed by the Secretary of State. 

 

(c) It shall be the duty of the Secretary of State and of the county 

clerk of each county to establish and maintain an indexed "Roster of 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 126 of 147



Workshop Memorandum No. 20-011  Page 2 of 3 

Public Agencies," to be so designated, which shall contain all 

information filed as required in subdivisions (a) and (b), which roster 

is hereby declared to be a public record. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 127 of 147



Workshop Memorandum No. 20-011  Page 3 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 128 of 147



 

Director Memorandum 20-012 

Date: January 21, 2020 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-04 Approving an 
Investment Policy and Appointment of the General Manager as the District 
Investment Officer 

Recommendation: That the Board adopts Resolution No. 2020-04. 

 
On January 15, 2019, the Board of Directors adopted the current investment policy as Resolution 
No. 2019-03 [Director Memorandum No. 19-003].   
 
Each year the District staff presents the investment policy for review by the Board of Directors.  If 
no modifications are necessary, the District staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 129 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 2 of 9 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  
APPROVING AN INVESTMENT POLICY AND APPOINTING  

THE GENERAL MANAGER AS THE DISTRICT INVESTMENT OFFICER 
 
 
WHEREAS, California Government Code, Section 53646, requires the annual adoption of an 
investment policy.   
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby resolves as follows:   
 
Section 1:  Adoption of Investment Policy. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code 53600 et seq., the “Yucaipa Valley Water District Statement of 
Investment Policy” is hereby approved as attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference.   
 
Section 2:  Appointment of Investment Officer. 
 
The General Manager of the District is hereby appointed as the District’s Investment Officer and 
is authorized and directed to do all things necessary to implement the Investment Policy.   
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020. 
 
 
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  ATTEST: 

   
Chris Mann, President Board of Directors  Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 130 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 3 of 9 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 
January 21, 2020 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide broad guidelines to the District Investment Officer, who is 
charged with the responsibility for the investment of funds for the District.  All investments by the 
District shall be governed by State law and by this policy.   
 
The District Investment Officer is responsible for administering the District's investments.  In 
furtherance of this responsibility, the District Investment Officer shall issue and administer detailed 
Investment Instructions which may change periodically, and which will implement this Investment 
Policy.  The investment of bond proceeds will be further restricted by the provisions of relevant 
bond documents.  
 

POLICY GUIDELINES 
 
1) Prudence 
 
The standard of prudence to be used by the District Investment Officer shall be the "prudent 
person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio.  All persons 
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, and managing public funds 
shall act with care, skill, prudence and diligence in order to safeguard the principal amount of the 
investments and maintain the liquidity needs of the District.   
 
2) Objectives 
 
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the District's investment activities shall be:   
 

A. Safety of Principal.  The investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks 
to ensure preservation of capital in the portfolio.   

 
B. Liquidity.  The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 

District to meet its cash flow requirements.   
 

C. Return on Investment.  The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 
objective of attaining a market rate of return on its investments consistent with the 
constraints imposed by its safety objective and cash flow requirements.   

 
3) Delegation of Authority 
 
The management and oversight responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to 
the District Investment Officer who shall monitor and review all investments for consistency with 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 131 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 4 of 9 

this investment policy.  No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided 
under the limits of this policy.  The District Investment Officer shall maintain investment 
instructions for internal and external management of investments consistent with State 
Government Code requirements.  The District may contract for the use of investment manager 
services subject to all other provisions of this Investment Policy.  The District Investment Officer 
shall maintain a list of authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions that are approved for 
investment purposes, and it shall be the policy of the District staff to purchase securities only from 
those authorized institutions or firms.   
 
4) Investment Oversight Committee 
 
There is hereby established an Investment Oversight Committee, which shall consist of the 
Investment Officer, the District’s Controller and the members of the Board of Directors.   
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Committee to:   
 

A. Review changes in investment practices of the Investment Officer for compliance 
with the Investment Policy and investment transaction instructions and 
procedures;  

 
B. Review the District’s monthly Unaudited Financial Report for adherence to this 

Investment Policy and investment instructions and procedures in the event that 
said Report is not presented at a workshop of the Board; and  

 
C. Identify any deviations from the Investment Policy or any investment instructions 

or procedures which are deemed imprudent. 
 
To maintain full financial transparency of the District’s operations, an unaudited financial report 
will be provided monthly to the Board of Directors at a workshop meeting prior to being presented 
at a board meeting.  The presentation of the monthly financial report shall be the preferred 
mechanism to be used to provide all financial information to the entire Board and the public. 
  
5) Ethics and Conflict of Interest 
 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 
activities that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair 
their ability to make impartial decisions.  Officers and employees involved in the investment 
process shall abide by the District’s Conflict of Interest Code, California Government Code, 
Section 1090 and the California Political Reform Act.   
 
6) Authorized and Acceptable Investments 
 
Government Code, Section 53601 sets forth the eligible investments for the District.  All 
investments purchased for the District shall be delivered, either by book entry or physical delivery, 
to the District’s third party custodian.  All investments of the District shall have the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District as registered owner.   
 

A. As to the District’s surplus funds generally (excluding funds from bond proceeds), 
the District’s Investment Officer is authorized to invest such funds as follows: 

 
1. Local Agency Investment Fund - The District Investment Officer may invest 

in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) established by the State 
Treasurer for the benefit of local agencies.  There is no minimum 
investment period and the minimum transaction is $5,000, in multiples of 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 132 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 5 of 9 

$1,000 above that, with a maximum of $30 million for any agency.  The 
LAIF offers high liquidity because deposits can be converted to cash in 24 
hours and no interest is lost.  All interest is distributed to those agencies 
participating on a proportionate share.   

 
2. Passbook Savings Accounts and Demand Deposit Accounts - For 

purposes of this policy, passbook savings accounts and demand deposit 
accounts and bank money-market accounts shall be considered 
appropriate investments.  The District may earn interest on idle funds in 
such accounts at a federally-insured institution. 

 
3. United States Government Securities - U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds 

and Certificates of Indebtedness, or those for which the full faith and credit 
of the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest and 
are not subject to any limitations.  Since this investment category is 
considered to be extremely safe and liquid, there is no limitation as to the 
percentage of the District’s portfolio that can be invested in these types of 
investments.   

 
B. As to the District’s bond proceeds, and subject to the Board’s approval, such 

proceeds may be invested by the District Investment Officer in the following 
investments authorized under California Government Code, Sections 53601, 
53635 and 53635.2:   

 
1. United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills or certificates of indebtedness 

or other obligations for which the full faith and credit of the United States 
are pledged for the payment of principal and interest; 

 
2. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise 

obligations, participations, or other instruments, including those issued by 
or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United 
States government-sponsored enterprises.  Certain short-term obligations 
of agencies or instrumentalities of the United States Government may be 
backed only by the issuing agency or instrumentality and may not be 
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government.  For 
example, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Banks and the 
Freddie Mac are supported only by the credit of the agency or 
instrumentality that issued them, and not by the United States Government, 
and securities issued by the Federal Farm Credit System and the Fannie 
Mae are supported by the agency’s or instrumentality’s right to borrow 
money from the U.S. Treasury under certain circumstances; 

 
3. Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of this state, including 

bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing 
property owned, controlled, or operated by this state or by a department, 
board, agency, or authority of this state.   

 
4. Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness of any local 

agency within this state, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues 
from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled or operated by the 
local agency, or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local 
agency.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 133 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 6 of 9 

5. Bankers acceptances (otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts) 
that are drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank which are eligible 
for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.  Such banker’s acceptances 
may not exceed 180 days maturity.  No more than forty percent (40%) of 
the District’s money may be invested in such banker’s acceptances.  No 
more than thirty percent (30%) of the District’s money may be invested in 
the banker’s acceptances of any one commercial bank.  The commercial 
bank shall have the highest short-term letter and numerical rating as 
provided by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) or Standard & 
Poor’s Rating Agency (“Standard & Poor’s”); 

 
6. Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of the highest 

letter and number rating as provided for by a nationally recognized 
statistical-rating organization (NRSRO).  The entity that issues the 
commercial paper shall meet all of the following conditions in either 
paragraph (a) or paragraph (b):   

 
(a) The entity is organized and operating in the United States as a 

general corporation, and has total assets in excess of $500 million, 
and has debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is rated “A” 
or higher by a NRSRO.   

 
(b) The entity is organized within the United States as a special 

purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company, has a 
program wide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, 
over collateralization, letters of credit or surety bond, and has 
commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or higher, or the equivalent by 
an NRSRO.  

 
 Commercial paper shall have a maximum maturity of 270 days or less.  The 

District may invest no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of its money in 
such commercial paper.  The District may purchase no more than ten 
percent (10%) of the outstanding commercial paper of any single issuer; 

 
7. Repurchase agreements with respect to securities described in paragraphs 

(i) and (ii) above provided that the term of any such repurchase agreement 
shall be one year or less.  A repurchase agreement means a purchase of 
securities by the District pursuant to an agreement by which the seller will 
repurchase the securities on or before a specific date at an agreed upon 
price, thereby establishing the yield during the District’s holding period.  
The yield established for the repurchase agreement is determined by 
current short-term rates and may be more or less than the interest rate on 
the underlying securities.  The securities underlying a repurchase 
agreement is, in effect, collateral under the agreement and the securities 
shall be (otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts) delivered to 
the District by book entry, physical delivery or by third-party custodial 
agreement.  At the time a repurchase agreement is made, the underlying 
securities shall be valued at one hundred and two percent (102%) or 
greater of the repurchase price.  If an agreement is in effect for more than 
one day, and, in the event their value drops below one hundred and two 
percent (102%) of the repurchase price, the seller to the repurchase 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 134 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 7 of 9 

agreement shall provide additional securities or money within one business 
day so that the value of the collateral is not less than one hundred and two 
percent (102%) of the repurchase price.  At the expiration of each 
agreement, the District receives payment of the repurchase price as a 
condition for the transfer of the underlying securities back to the Seller; 

 
8. Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered 

bank or a state or federal savings association (as defined in Section 5102 
of the California Financial Code) a state or federal credit union, or by a 
state-licensed branch of a foreign bank.  Purchases of negotiable 
certificates of deposit may not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the District’s 
money which may be invested pursuant to this section.  The District is 
prohibited from investing the District’s funds, or funds in the custody of the 
District, in negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a state or federal 
credit union if a member of the District’s Board of Directors, or any person 
with investment decision making authority with the District, also serves on 
the Board of Directors, or any committee appointed by the Board of 
Directors, or the credit committee or the supervisory committee of the state 
or federal credit union issuing the negotiable certificates of deposit.   

 
9. Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies 

(also known as mutual fund companies) that invest in the securities and 
obligations as authorized by Government Code, Section 53601(a) to (j), (m) 
and (n) and that comply with investment restrictions contained in 
Government Code, Section 53630, et. seq.  However, a county or party to 
a reverse repurchase agreement or securities lending agreement is not 
required to be a primary dealer of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
if the diversified management company’s board of directors finds that the 
counterparty presents a minimal risk of default, and the value of the 
securities underlying a repurchase agreement or securities lending 
agreement may be 100% of the sales price of the securities are marked to 
market daily.  The diversified management company in this section shall 
have attained the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical 
ranking provided by not less than 2 NRSROs.  The purchase price of 
shares of beneficial interest shall not include any commission or load that 
the company may charge and shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the 
District’s money that may be invested pursuant to this Statement of 
Investment Policy. No more than ten percent (10%) of the District’s money 
may be invested in shares of any one mutual fund referenced in this 
paragraph (ix);   

 
10. Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies 

that are money market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 
80(a-l et seq.).  The diversified management company shall have attained 
the highest ranking or the highest letter in numerical ranking provided by 
no less than 2 NRSROs.  The purchase price of shares of beneficial interest 
shall not include any commission or load that the companies may charge 
and shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the District’s money that may 
be invested pursuant to this Statement of Investment Policy.   

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 135 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 8 of 9 

7) Nondiscrimination 
 
Investments shall not knowingly be made in any institution that practices or supports directly or 
indirectly through its actions discrimination on the basis of race, religion, color, creed, national or 
ethnic origin, age, gender, or physical disability.   
 
8) Maximum Maturity 
 
Investment maturities shall be based on a review of cash flow forecasts.  Maturities will be 
scheduled so as to permit the District to meet all projected obligations.  No investment shall be 
made in any security, other than a security underlying a repurchase or reverse repurchase 
agreement that at the time of the investment has a term remaining to maturity in excess of five 
years.   
 
9) Ineligible Investments 
 
Any security type or structure not specifically approved by this policy and investment instructions 
is specifically prohibited.  Security types that are thereby prohibited to be purchased include, but 
are not limited to:   
 

A. Complex derivative structures such as range notes, inverse floaters, or any other 
complex variable rate or structure note.   

 
B. Interest-only strips that are derived from a pool of mortgages, or any security that 

could result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity.   
 
10) Sales Prior to Maturity 
 
Sales prior to maturity are permitted.  It is also recognized that in a changing interest rate 
environment, it may be financially advantageous to sell investments at a book value loss in order 
to reinvest in a more profitable security.   
 
11) Reporting 
 
The District Investment Officer shall render to the Board of Directors a monthly report which shall 
include the following information for investments:   
 

• Distribution of funds within all financial accounts maintained by the District;1 
• Summary of investments including the types of investments, maturity date, yield, costs 

and market value;2 
• Detailed money market investment account activity associated with the purchase of U.S. 

Treasuries; ² 
• The current balance, accrued interest and historical effective yield of funds managed by 

the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).² 
 
 
The monthly report shall also: 
 

A. State compliance of the portfolio to this Investment Policy and State law, or state 
the manner in which the portfolio is not in compliance.   

 

 
1 This report component is contained within the monthly Unaudited Financial Report. 
2 This report component is contained within the Investment Summary of the monthly Unaudited Financial Report. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 136 of 147



Director Memorandum No. 20-012  Page 9 of 9 

B. Include a description of any of the District’s funds, investments or programs that 
are under management of contracted parties, including lending programs.   

 
C. Include a statement denoting the ability of the District to meet its expenditure 

requirements of the next six months, or provide an explanation as to why sufficient 
money shall, or may, not be available.   

 
The District Investment Officer shall annually render to the Board of Directors a Statement of 
Investment Policy, which the Board of Directors shall consider at a public meeting.   
 
12) Interest Allocation 
 
The Investment Officer shall allocate interest pursuant to an Interest Allocation Schedule.  A list 
of funds eligible to receive interest shall be maintained by the District Investment Officer.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 137 of 147



 

 

Board Reports 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 138 of 147



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 139 of 147



August 2019 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

72 full time employees 
 

FY 2019-20 Operating Budget: Water Division - $14,455,500 
 Sewer Division - $12,217,712 
 Recycled Water Division - $1,301,447 
 

Number of Services: 13,794 drinking water connections serving 19,243 units 
14,104 sewer connections serving 22,774 units 
111 recycled water connections serving 460 units 

 

Water System: 223 miles of drinking water pipelines 
2,033 fire hydrants 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
2.958 billion gallon annual drinking water demand  
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 3.5 mgd 
213 miles of sewer mainlines 
4,504 sewer manholes 
5 sewer lift stations 
1.27 billion gallons of recycled water produced per year 

 

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
0.681 billion gallon annual recycled water demand 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 140 of 147



August 2019 
 

 
Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 

Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 
 

 
 
Typical Rates, Fees and Charges: 
 

• Drinking Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.429 per each 1,000 gallons 
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $1.919 per each 1,000 gallons 
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons $2.099 per each 1,000 gallons 
101,000 gallons or more $2.429 per each 1,000 gallons 
 

• Recycled Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons or more $1.425 per each 1,000 gallons 

 

• Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water): 
5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $14.00 per month 
1” Water Meter $23.38 per month 
1-1/2” Water Meter $46.62 per month 

 

• Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge: 
Typical Residential Charge $42.43 per month 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 141 of 147



August 2019 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

 
San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal 

Water District 

San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

Service Area Size 353 square miles 222 square miles 

Table “A” Water Entitlement 102,600 acre feet 17,300 acre feet 

Imported Water Rate $125.80 / acre foot $399 / acre foot 

Tax Rates for FY 2019-20 $0.1425 per $100 $0.1775 per $100 

Number of Board Members Five (5)  Seven (7) 

Operating Budget FY 2019-20 $58,372,000 $9,551,000 
 

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge) 

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District - Customers in San Bernardino 
County or City of Yucaipa pay a pass-through amount of $0.270 per 1,000 gallons. 
 

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency - Customers in Riverside County or City of 
Calimesa pay a pass-through amount of $0.660 per 1,000 gallons.  A proposed 
rate change to $0.857 per 1,000 gallons is pending future consideration by YVWD. 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 142 of 147



August 2019 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce 
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater 
treatment process.  This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farmland or further 
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and 
stimulate plant growth. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Certificate of Participation (COP) – A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease 
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues. 

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution.  E. coli are the most common bacteria in 
wastewater. 

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of typically underground pipes that receive and convey 
sanitary wastewater or storm water. 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 143 of 147



August 2019 
 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals,  hormones,  and  other  organic wastewater 
contaminants. 

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 144 of 147



August 2019 
 

steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District 
for treatment, use and/or disposal. 

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where 
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) -  Regional regulatory agency  that develops plans 
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry. 

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need.  Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams.  In addition to using 
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown 
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater 
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water, 
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days 
before you dig).  

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers, 
lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing, or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water Cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.  

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps 
that deliver water to customers.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 145 of 147

https://www.digalert.org/


August 2019 
 

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
mainline distribution system.  

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a 
specific point on a stream or river.  

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor 
water use and landscape watering requirements.  

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.  

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or 
swamps.  

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 146 of 147



August 2019 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 21, 2020 - Page 147 of 147




